STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA IN CIRCUIT COURT
COUNT OF LINCOLN SECOND JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

LINCOLN COUNTY, 41Crv. 20-000275
Plaintiff,
ANSWER AND COUNTERCLAIM
DAVID TUNTLAND,

Defendant.

COMES NOW, Defendant David Tuntland, and through his counsel, tesponds as
follows for his Answer to the Plaintiffs Complaint, his affirmative defenses, and
counterclaims.

A. Unless otherwise specifically stated, Tuntland denies each and every allegation
asserted in the Plaintiff’s Complaint.

INTRODUCTION

B. David Tuntland seeks in his counterclaims fitst, declatatory relief for the action
of the Lincoln County, South Dakota, Board of Commissionets (the “Boatd”) for the passing
of Resolution 2002-27 (the “Resolution”), in which the Board apptoved a lease purchase
agreement and a $50 million bond levy without requisite proper notice ot statutotily required
mote than 60 percent vote of the five-member Board. Hete, four votes are requited; the Board

only achieved three.



Second, Tuntland also countetclaims against Lincoln County for violating his First
Amendment right to free speech and the right to petition under 42 U.S.C. § 1983. The legal
action commenced by Lincoln County against a private citizen for declaratory judgment—in
which Tuntland contends the County is seeking an advisotry opinion—is retaliatory for
Tuntland’s aggressive opposition to the County’s actions. Tuntland has been specifically
targeted because of his protests and now must incur the legal fees and costs for an
unprecedented legal action.

Finally, since the County has brought the fight to Tuntland, in an almost mythical and
Biblical Goliath versus David sense, he seeks a wtit of prohibition, ot in the alternative a writ
of mandamus, to prevent further County action on the Resolution such as the selling of the
required bonds or to pronounce the enactment of Resolution 2002—27 invalid as violating the
law or both. Further, Tuntland seeks telief under 42 U.S.C. § 1983 for the violation of his First
Amendment rights of free speech and right to petition the govetnment for a redress of

grievances.

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT
1. In response to the allegations in paragraph 1 of the Complaint, Tuntland denies
the allegations in Paragraph 1 insofat as it alleges this Coutt has jutisdiction for the claims
asserted under SDCL 21-24, South Dakota’s Declaratory Judgments Act. Tuntland admits he
had letters sent to the Board regarding the legalities of the Resolution dated February 18, 2020
regarding a lease purchase and bond offetings of up to $50 million (Resolution 2002-27) and
demanded a course of action to rescind that Resolution. To the extent the allegations assert

legal conclusions regarding the authotity to pass the cited Resolution, Tuntland denies the



allegations. As to the referenced “attached Exhibit 1,” admits it is a copy of a letter Tuntland
instructed his counsel to send to the Board dated March 24, 2020. All othert specific ot general
allegations not otherwise specifically admitted ot denied in Patagraph 1 are denied.

2. Defendant Tuntland admits the allegation in paragtaph 2 of the Complaint that
Lincoln County is an entity ot petson defined under SDCL 21-24-1.

3. In response to the allegations contained in paragraph 3 of the Complaint,
Defendant denies that the referenced Resolution “passed” as a “lease putchase agreement,”
and affirmatively asserts that the Resolution referenced was impropetly acted upon by the
Boatd and approved by only three members of the Boatd. Tuntland affirmatively asserts the
Board did not garner the necessary a vote of more than 60% of the members-elect of the
board as required by SDCL 7-21-16.1. Tuntland admits the referenced Resolution calls for
the “issuance of bonds,” he denies that the Board had authotity to issue the referenced bond.
Tuntland admits that SDCL 21-24-3 is cited in Paragraph 1, but it is a legal conclusion and
thetefore, denies its relevance. To the extent that any other allegation contained in Patagraph
3 of the Complaint is inconsistent with, contradictoty to, ot not addtessed by the affirmative
allegations set forth above, Tuntland denies those allegations.

4. In tesponse to the allegations contained in paragraph 4 of the Complaint,
Tuntland denies but for any allegations taised in his countetclaims or affirmative defenses.
Tuntland admits that the reference to SDCL 21-24-6 is for declaratory relief.

5. In tesponse to the allegations contained in paragraph 5 of the Complaint,
Tuntland denies but for any allegations raised in his counterclaims ot affirmative defenses.

6. Defendant denies the allegations contained in paragraph 6 of the Complaint.



7. Defendant denies the allegations contained in paragraph 7 of the Complaint.

8. The allegations as assetted in Paragraph 8 ate conclusoty and legal conclusions
and therefote, Tuntland denies.

FACTS

9. Defendant is without knowledge and information sufficient to form a belief
about the truth or falsity of the allegations in Paragraph 9 of the Complaint, and therefore
denies those allegations.

10.  Defendant is without knowledge and information sufficient to form a belief
about the truth or falsity of the allegations in Paragraph 10 of the Complaint, and therefore
denies those allegations.

11.  Defendant is without knowledge and information sufficient to form a belief
about the truth or falsity of the allegations in Paragraph 11 of the Complaint, and therefore
denies those allegations.

12. Defendant is without knowledge and information sufficient to form a belief
about the truth or falsity of the allegations in Paragraph 12 of the Complaint, and therefore
denies those allegations.

13. Defendant is without knowledge and information sufficient to form a belief
about the truth or falsity of the allegations in Paragraph 13 of the Complaint, and therefore
denies those allegations. Tuntland admits that the referenced attachment, Exhibit 2 is a
document dated August 13, 2019, referencing the Board of Commissioners, “Routine
Business,” and “Claims,” but is without knowledge and information sufficient to form a belief

as to the truth or falsity of the document as it relates to its authenticity as to the specific



allegations asserted in paragraph 13 of the Complaint, thetefore, denies it as supporting the
allegations asserted.

14.  Defendant is without knowledge and information sufficient to form a belief
about the truth or falsity of the allegations in Paragraph 14 of the Complaint, and thetefore
denies those allegations. Tuntland admits that the referenced attachment, Exhibit 3 is a
document dated December 3, 2019, referencing the Board of Commissioners, but is without
knowledge and information sufficient to form a belief as to the truth ot falsity of the document
as it relates to its authenticity as to the specific allegations asserted in paragraph 14 of the
Complaint, therefore, denies it as suppotting the allegations asserted.

15. In response to the allegations contained in paragraph 15 of the Complaint,
Defendant is without knowledge and information sufficient to form a belief about the truth
or falsity of the allegations in Paragraph 15 of the Complaint, and therefore denies those
allegations. Tuntland admits that the referenced attachment, Exhibit 4 is a document dated
January 2, 2019, referencing the Board of Commissioners, but is without knowledge and
information sufficient to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of the document as it relates to
its authenticity as to the specific allegations asserted in paragtaph 15 of the Complaint,
therefore, denies it as supporting the allegations assetted.

16.  Defendant is without knowledge and information sufficient to form a belief
about the truth or falsity of the allegations in Patagtaph 16 of the Complaint, and therefore
denies those allegations. Tuntland admits that the referenced attachment, Exhibit 4 is a
document dated January 2, 2019, referencing the Board of Commissioners, but is without

knowledge and information sufficient to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of the document



as it relates to its authenticity as to the specific allegations assetted in paragraph 16 of the
Complaint, therefore, denies it as supporting the allegations asserted.

17. Defendant is without knowledge and information sufficient to form a belief
about the truth or falsity of the allegations in Paragraph 17 of the Complaint, and therefore
denies those allegations. Tuntland admits that the referenced attachment, Exhibit 5 is a
document dated March 26, 2019, referencing the Board of Commissionets, but is without
knowledge and information sufficient to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of the document
as it relates to its authenticity as to the specific allegations asserted in patagraph 17 of the
Complaint, therefore, denies it as supporting the allegations asserted.

18.  Defendant 1s without knowledge and information sufficient to form a belief
about the truth or falsity of the allegations in Paragraph 18 of the Complaint, and therefore
denies those allegations. Tuntland admits that the teferenced attachment, Exhibit 5 is a
document dated March 26, 2019, teferencing the Boatd of Commissioners, but is without
knowledge and information sufficient to form a belief as to the truth o falsity of the document
as it relates to its authenticity as to the specific allegations assetted in paragraph 18 of the
Complaint, therefore, denies it as suppotting the allegations assetted.

19.  Defendant denies the allegations contained in paragraph 19 of the Complaint.
Further, Defendant affirmatively alleges that there are statutoty sections othet than SDCL 7-
25-19 and 7-25-20 that apply to and control the lease purchase agreement and bonding issues
related to the Resolution. Other applicable statutes include SDCL 6-8B, which is referenced

in the Resolution, as well as other provisions of SDCL 7-25, also teferenced in the Resolution,



and sections such as SDCL 7-21-16.1, which applies because it governs “lease purchase
agreements,” as described in the Resolution.

20.  With regard to the allegations contained in patragraph 20 of the Complaint,
Defendant admits that an agenda item was to “Consider a motion to bond for a public safety
center.” Tuntland admits that the referenced attachment, Exhibit 6 is a document dated
February 18, 2020, referencing the Board of Commissioners, but is without knowledge and
information sufficient to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of the document as it relates to
its authenticity as to the remaining specific allegations asserted in paragraph 20 of the
Complaint, therefore, denies it as suppotting the allegations asserted. To the extent that the
allegations contained in Paragraph 20 of the Complaint are inconsistent with, contradictory
to, or not addressed by the affirmative allegations set forth above, Defendant denies those
allegations.

21.  Defendant is without knowledge and information sufficient to form a belief
about the truth or falsity of the allegations in Paragraph 21 of the Complaint, and ﬂlerefore
denies those allegations.

22 With regard to the allegations contained in patagraph 22 of the Complaint,
Defendant admits that Commissioner Schmidt made a motion. Tuntland also admits that a
vote of 3-2 occurred. Howevet, Tuntland affitmatively states that at least two motions were
made telating to the proposed Public Safety Center, and that the comments at the meeting
demonstrate the Commissioners wete confused about the particulars of the motions.
Defendant further affirmatively alleges that there was no written version of a resolution which

either the Commissioners or concerned citizens could review prior to voting on it. The



allegations as asserted in Paragraph 22 regarding references to SDCL 7-25-19 and 7-25-20 are
conclusory and legal conclusions and therefore, Tuntland denies them. To the extent that all
other allegations contained in Paragraph 22 of the Complaint ate inconsistent with,
contradictory to, or not addressed by the affirmative allegations set forth above, Defendant
denies those allegations.

23. With regard to the allegations contained in patragraph 23 of the Complaint,
Defendant admits a resolution was published. Tuntland is without sufficient information or
knowledge regarding whether the newspapets referenced ate legal newspapers as desctibed
and therefore denies. Tuntland admits that the referenced attachment, Exhibit7 reproduces
copies of four affidavits of publication with an attached referenced Resolution 2002-27.

24.  Defendant is without knowledge and information sufficient to form a belief
about the truth or falsity of the allegations in Paragraph 24 of the Complaint, and therefore
denies those allegations.

25.  Defendant is without knowledge and information sufficient to form a belief
about the truth or falsity of the allegations in Patagraph 25 of the Complaint, and therefore
denies those allegations. Tuntland admits that the referenced attachment, Exhibit 8 is a
document dated approximately Match 5, 2020 from the Lennox Independent newspaper titled
“Notice of Meetings to discuss a Lincoln County Public Safety Center,” but is without
knowledge and information sufficient to form a belief as to the ttuth ot falsity of the document
as it relates to its authenticity to the temaining specific allegations assetted in paragraph 25 of

the Complaint, therefore, denies it as suppotting the allegations asserted.



26.  Defendant admits the allegations contained in paragraph number 26 of the
Complaint.

27.  Defendant is without knowledge and information sufficient to form a belief
about the truth or falsity of the allegations in Patagtaph 27 of the Complaint, and therefote
denies those allegations. Tuntland admits that the referenced attachment, Exhibit 9 is an
atticle dated February 24, 2020, titled “Lincoln County to build 2 new jail as patt of planned
public safety center,” from the Argus Leader, but is without knowledge and information
sufficient to form a belief as to the truth ot falsity of the document as it relates to its
authenticity to the remaining specific allegations assetted in paragraph 20 of the Complaint,
therefore, denies it as supporting the allegations asserted.

28.  Defendant is without knowledge and information sufficient to form a belief
about the truth or falsity of the allegations in Paragraph 28 of the Complaint, and therefore
denies those allegations.

29.  Defendant is without knowledge and information sufficient to form a belief
about the truth or falsity of the allegations in Paragraph 29 of the Complaint, and therefore
denies those allegations.

30.  Defendant admits the allegations contained in paragraph 30 of the Complaint.

31.  With regard to the allegations contained in paragraph 31 of the Complaint,
Defendant denies that the letters “imply potential litigation.” Defendant is without knowledge
and information sufficient to form a belief about the truth or falsity of the temaining
allegations in Paragraph 31 of the Complaint, and therefore denies those allegations.

32. Defendant denies the allegations contained in paragraph 32 of the Complaint.



33.  Defendant denies the allegations contained in paragraph 33 of the Complaint.
34.  Defendant denies the allegations contained in paragraph 34 of the Complaint.
ISSUE ONE

35.  The allegations of paragraph 35 are speculative, conclusory, and improper legal
conclusions, therefore, Defendant denies the allegations contained in paragraph 35 of the
Complaint.

36.  The allegations of paragraph 36 are speculative, conclusory, and impropet legal
conclusions, reference a partial quote, fail to cite to the exact case the partial quote is from and
therefore Tuntland denies any direct or implied allegation asserted.

37.  The recitation of a state statute is not an asserted fact and as alleged to support
its relevance to any claim against Tuntland is speculative, conclusoty, and improper legal
conclusion and therefore, Defendant denies any allegations contained in paragraph 37 of the
Complaint.

38.  The allegations of paragtraph 38 are speculative, conclusoty, and improper legal
conclusions. Moreover, the Defendant is without knowledge and information sufficient to
form a belief as to the truth or falsity of the remaining allegations in Paragraph 38 of the
Complaint, and therefore denies those allegations.

39.  Tuntland denies the allegations asserted in Paragraph 39.

40.  Tuntland denies the allegations assetted in Paragraph 40.

41.  The allegations of paragraph 41 ate speculative, conclusory, and improper legal

conclusions. Defendant denies the allegations contained in paragraph 41 of the Complaint.
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42.  The allegations of paragraph 42 ate speculative, conclusoty, and improper legal

conclusions. Defendant denies the allegations contained in patagraph 42 of the Complaint.
ISSUE TWO

43.  The allegations of paragraph 43 are speculative, conclusoty, and impropet legal
conclusions. Defendant denies the allegations contained in paragraph 43 of the Complaint.

44.  With regard to the allegations contained in paragtaph 44 of the Complaint, the
Defendant admits that a “pre-drafted resolution was not ptesent, deptiving the public and
commission of adequate notice.” The remaining allegations do not appeat to form a complete
sentence and therefore the meaning is unintelligible. To the extent that the allegations
contained in Paragraph 44 of the Complaint ate inconsistent with, contradictoty to, ot not
addtessed by the affirmative allegations set forth above, Defendant denies those allegations.

45.  The allegations of paragraph 45 are speculative, conclusory, and impropet legal
conclusions. Defendant denies the allegations contained in paragraph 45 of the Complaint.

46.  The allegations of paragraph 46 are speculative, conclusory, and imptoper legal
conclusions. With respect to the allegations contained in patagraph 46 of the Complaint,
Defendant affirmatively alleges that the comments of the commissionets at the meeting, when
discussing the Resolution and the Motion, demonstrate they wete confused by the referenced
Motion. Defendant further alleges that SDCL 7-25-19 and 7-25-20 do not have any provisions
relating to passage of them, and do not control the Resolution. To the extent that the
allegations contained in Paragraph 46 of the Complaint ate inconsistent with, contradictory
to, or not addressed by the affirmative allegations set forth above, Defendant denies those

allegations.

11



47.  Defendant denies the allegations contained in paragraph 47 of the Complaint.

48.  The allegations of paragraph 48 are speculative, conclusory, and improper legal
conclusions. Defendant denies the allegations contained in paragraph 48 of the Complaint.
Further, Defendant affirmatively asserts that the Board of Commissionets cannot opt out of
applicable South Dakota law.

49.  'The allegations of paragraph 49 are speculative, conclusoty, and improper legal
conclusions. To the extent that the allegations contained in Patagtaph 49 of the Complaint are
inconsistent with, contradictory to, or not addressed by the affirmative allegations set forth
above, Defendant denies those allegations.

50.  The allegations of paragraph 50 ate speculative, conclusory, and improper legal
conclusions. To the extent that the allegations contained in Paragtraph 50 of the Complaint are
inconsistent with, contradictory to, or not addressed by the affitmative allegations set forth
above, Defendant denies those allegations.

ISSUE THREE

51.  'The allegations of paragraph 51 are speculative, conclusoty, and improper legal
conclusions. Defendant denies the allegations contained in patagraph 51 of the Complaint.

52.  Defendant admits the allegations contained in paragraph 52 of the Complaint.

53.  'The allegations of paragraph 53 are speculative, conclusoty, and improper legal
conclusions. To the extent that the allegations contained in Patagraph 53 of the Complaint are
inconsistent with, contradictory to, or not addressed by the affitmative allegations set forth

above, Defendant denies those allegations.

12



54.  The allegations of paragraph 54 are speculative, conclusoty, and imptoper legal
conclusions. To the extent that the allegations contained in Paragraph 54 of the Complaint
ate inconsistent with, contradictory to, or not addressed by the affirmative allegations set forth
above, Defendant denies those allegations.

55. The allegations of paragraph 55 arte speculative, conclusoty, and impropet legal
conclusions. To the extent that the allegations contained in Paragtaph 55 of the Complaint
ate inconsistent with, contradictory to, or not addtessed by the affirmative allegations set forth
above, Defendant denies those allegations.

56.  The allegations of paragraph 56 are speculative, conclusoty, and improper legal
conclusions. Defendant denies the allegations contained in paragtaph 56 of the Complaint.

57. The allegations of paragraph 57 are speculative, conclusoty, and imptoper legal
conclusions. To the extent that the allegations contained in Paragraph 57 of the Complaint
ate inconsistent with, contradictory to, ot not addtessed by the affirmative allegations set forth
above, Defendant denies those allegations.

CLAIM FOR RELIEF

58.  Defendant Tuntland denies that Lincoln County is entitled to the relief
requested.

AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES

Defendant David Tuntland asserts the following Affirmative Defenses:

13



First Affirmative Defense

1. Plaintiff’s Complaint fails to state a claim upon which relief can be granted.
Lincoln County does not meet the required criteria for relief under the Declaratory Judgments
Act.

Second Affirmative Defense

1. Plaintiff has failed to join necessaty parties pursuant to Rule 19. Although it is
implied that the Plaintiff “Lincoln County” encompasses the Board of Commissioners, each
individual Board member who voted in favor of Resolution 2002-27 must also be individually
named since if their actions are incorrect, they are personally liable for any action resulting in
the issuance of bonds as found within that Resolution. Moreovet, as to the Defendant
Tuntland, the Plaintiff has only identified him as the only opponent of the Resolution. All
taxpayets opposed to the Resolution must be identified before proper relief can be granted if
any in favor of the Plaintiff.

Third Affirmative Defense

2. This Court lacks subject matter jutisdiction to the Plaintiffs claim for
declaratory relief to the extent Lincoln County seeks an advisory opinion on speculations of
possible litigation.

Fourth Affirmative Defense

3. The Plaintiff’s action is improper and is made in bad faith as it seeks to retaliate
against a taxpayer of Lincoln County for his protest of the County’s action in passing a
tesolution he deemed to be improper causing Tuntland to expend attotney fees and incur costs

to defend his First Amendment right to free speech.
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Fifth Affirmative Defense

4. The Plaintiff’s action is improper and is made in bad faith as it seeks to retaliate
against a taxpayer of Lincoln County for his protest of the County’s action in passing a
resolution he deemed to be impropet causing Tuntland to expend attorney fees and incut costs
to defend his First Amendment right to petition.

Sixth Affirmative Defense

5. The Plaintiff’s action is improper and is made in bad faith as it secks to retaliate
against a taxpayer of Lincoln County for his protest of the County’s action in passing a
resolution Tuntland deemed to be impropet, as a ptior restraint of his right to exetcise cote
political speech activities protected under the First Amendment as watning not to protest
against Lincoln County or be subject to expensive litigation processes involving attotney fees
and costs.

Seventh Affirmative Defense

6. To the extent that the Counterclaim traises defenses, Defendant Tuntland asserts
those in defense to the Complaint.

Eighth Affirmative Defense

7. Defendant reserves the right to assert additional affirmative defenses.

COUNTERCLAIMS
David Tuntland, for his Counterclaims, incotporates the preceding allegations of his

Answer where material and as if fully restated.
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I
Declaratory Relief

1. David Tuntland is a citizen, tesident, and taxpayet of Lincoln County, South
Dakota.

2. The Plaintiff Lincoln County, includes by teference the County Boatd of
Commissioners, as demonstrated in paragraph 3 of its Complaint. The Boatd of
Commissioners includes: Joel Atends of District 1; David Gillespie of Disttict 2; Tiffani
Landeen of District 3; Michael Poppens of District 4; and Jim Schmidt of District 5.

3. The state of South Dakota created Lincoln County as a governmental entity.

4. Because Lincoln County is a subordinate atm of the State of South Dakota, it
has only such authority specifically given to the county by the state Legislature.

5. In other words, Lincoln County has only such powers that are expressly
conferred to it by statute or those reasonably implied from those exptessly granted.

0. Lincoln County, is a public corporation which exists only for public putposes
connected with the administration of state government, therefore, it lacks inhetent authotity
and derives is power only from the Legislatute.

7. And as for Lincoln County’s revenue, control of how that revenue is detived is
subject to state Legislative control whete there is no express contraty restriction.

8. Only three Board of Commissioner members Landeen, Schmidt, and Poppens,
voted in the affirmative for Resolution 2002-27.

9. Two Board of Commissioner members, Atends and Gillespie, voted in

opposition to Resolution 2002-27.
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10.  Priot to the Lincoln County Boatd of Commissionets’ meeting on February 18,
2020, the Agenda for the meeting included as one of the agenda items, “[cJonsider a motion
to bond for a public safety center.”

11.  Atthe Lincoln County Board of Commissioners’ meeting on February 18, 2020,
the Board of Commissioners voted 3-2 to pass Resolution No. 2002-27 which approve a new
Public Safety Building, and to apptrove $50,000,000.00 to pay for it.

12. Recordings of the February 18, 2020 meeting reveal that the Commissioners
expressed apparent confusion about what exactly they wete voting on as reflected in the
following exchanges among Boatd members:

“And did we draft a resolution?” Commissioner Schnﬁdt;

“Bill [Deputy State’s Attotney William Golden] has seen that then?” Chairman
Poppen;

“I don’t believe in the Nancy Pelosi method of you gotta pass something in
otder to know what’s in it.” Commissioner Ahrens;

“What ’'m going to want to see is public meeting so that votets can come to
the table and be a part of the process.” Unidentified Commissionet;

“I'm gonna be hard pressed to approve this today just given the fact that we
received the information [the Agenda, but not draft of the Resolution] on
Friday.” Unidentified Commissionet.

13. Upon information and belief, no draft of the Resolution was provided to the

Board of Commissioners prior to the Februaty 18, 2020 meeting; nor was it provided to the

Board of Commissionets at the meeting.
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14.  Likewise, ptior to the Board of Commissionets meeting and at the time of the
meeting, no copy of the complete Resolution 2002-27 was available to the public, including
Tuntland who attended the February 18th meeting.

15.  Therefore, at the February 18, 2020 meeting, upon information and belief,
Board members had not seen the complete text of Resolution 2002-27 prior to casting their
vote on the measure.

16.  Recordings of the February 18, 2020 Board of Commissioners public meeting
revealed apparent confusion regarding the Resolution’s terms to be voted upon:

“I motion that the Lincoln County Board of Commissionets offer bonds for
$50,000,000 to build a new public safety facility.”

Commissionet Schmidyt;
“Your motion is to do a $50 million on a level debt? Not a wrap?”

Commissioner Poppens;

“Wrapped bond? Or stand-alone bond?”
“I need help [understanding it]”

Unidentified Commissionet.
17. The Commissioners voted 3-2 to approve the Resolution 2002-27 despite the
lack of a complete writing of any kind of the Resolution at the meeting.
18. Resolution 2002-27 was later published. It read in part:
“Resolution relating to lease-purchase of new County Lincoln County Public Safety
Center: Authorizing the execution and delivery of a ground lease agreement, a lease-
purchase agreement, trust agreement, and approving and authorizing execution of
related documents and levy of taxes for the payment thereof.”

19. The later published Resolution 2002-27 further stated that it “was authorized

by South Dakota Codified Laws Ch. 7-25 and Ch. 6-8B, inclusive,” the “Lease-Purchase
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Agreement constitutes a bond,” and the term is “not exceeding 30 yeats...” to construct the
“new Lincoln County Public Safety Center.”

20.  Chapter 6-8B is entitled “Bonds of Local Public Bodies” and requites “an
election [of] sixty percent of voters™ in favor of issuing the bonds. SDCL 6-8B-2.

21.  South Dakota has a specific statute which authotizes a “lease-putchase
agreement” for jails or juvenile detention facilities. That statute states as follows:

The provisions of §7-21-16 ot any other provision of law notwithstanding, any

county may enter into a lease-purchase agreement for a term of years, not

exceeding ten, for the purchase or lease by the county of real ot personal
property. However, if a lease-putchase agreement is for the purchase or lease

of a jail or juvenile detention facility, the agreement may be for a term of yeats,

not exceeding twenty years.

Any lease-purchase agreement for a term exceeding one year requires the approval of more than

sixty percent of the members-elect of the board of commissioners. The final adoption of

any lease-purchase agreement shall be by resolution which may be refetred

pursuant to chapter 7-18A.
SDCL §7-21-16.1 (emphasis added).

22.  Tuntland asserts that the statute specifically addresses the “lease-purchase
agreements” for jails or juvenile detention facilities requites “mote than sixty percent of the
members-elect” of the board of commissioners to pass such a resolution.

23.  Tuntland asserts that Resolution 2002-27 failed to be propetly enacted because
it did not have “more than sixty percent of the members-elect” of the boatd of county
commissioners.

24. - Tuntland asserts that SDCL §7-21-16.1 was enacted in 1995 affer the enactment
of SDCL §7-25-19 and §7-25-20 relied upon by the Boatd of Commissioners as the propet

procedure to enact Resolution 2002-27.
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25.  Tuntland asserts that the Board of Commissioners’ teliance upon SDCL Ch. 7-
25 and particularly §§7-25-19 and 20, enacted in 1984, are statutes general in nature.

26.  Tuntland asserts that the South Dakota Supreme Court has declared in matters
of statutoty construction the “terms of a statute relating to a patticular subject matter will
prevail over general terms of another statute.” Nelsor v. Schoo! Board of Hill City, 459 N.W.2d
451, 454 (S.D. 1990).

27. In addition, Tuntland asserts that the South Dakota Supreme Court has declared
a mote recent statute will govern over an older statute. See, Peferson, Ex Rel. Peterson v. Burns,
635 N.W.2d 556, 567 (S.D. 2001).

28.  Tuntland asserts that based upon his belief, Resolution 2002-27 was impropetly
and illegally enacted because the Board of Commissioners telied upon the wrong statutes. For
instance, SDCL §7-21-16.1 is the more specific and later enacted statute, and is the proper
statute to enact a bonding issuance through a Board resolution that requites “mote than sixty
petcent of the membets elected” or 4 members of the 5 member Lincoln County Board of
County Commissionets.

29.  On February 18, 2020, the Lincoln County Commissionets failed to pass
Resolution 2002-27 by “more than sixty petcent of the membets-elect” of the Board of County
Commissioners. Tuntland therefore asserts the resolution is void. SDCL. §7-21-17, §7-21-26.

30.  Tuntland further asserts that because Resolution 2002-27 was impropetly and
illegally enacted, should any issuance of a bond under the Resolution occur, Board of
Commissioners who voted in favor of the measure would potentially expose themselves to

personal hability. See SDCL §7-21-17, 7-21-27, and 7-27-28.
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31.  Further, the Resolution finally published by Lincoln County indicated that the
County was acting under the authority of SDCL Chapter 6-8B, which requites a public vote
on bond issues, and the County has indicated that it has no intention of holding such a vote.

32. Accordingly, David Tuntland seeks declaratory relief declaring Resolution 2002-
27, enacted by the Lincoln County Board of Commissioners on February 18, 2020, as
impropet, illegal, and thus void. Tuntland requests that the Court issue a writ of prohibition
under SDCL §21-30-1 on the grounds that the enactment of Resolution 2002-27 by the Board
of Commissioners was in excess of the Board’s power ot authotity.

33.  Tuntland seeks declaratory relief that the Board enactment of Resolution 2002-
27 was illegal as violative of South Dakota law.

34.  Tuntland seeks declaratory relief that Resolution 2002-27 is void.

35.  Tuntland seeks declaratory relief and a writ of ptohibition to ptevent Lincoln
County from taking any action that would result in the issuance of bonds as granted undet
Resolution 2002-27.

36.  Tuntland seeks a writ of prohibition to prohibit the enforcement of any
provision of Resolution 2002-27.

II.
42 U.S.C. §1983 CLAIMS
Violations of the First and Fourteenth Amendments of the U.S. Constitution
37.  David Tuntland, incorporates the preceding allegations where material as if fully

restated for the support of his 42 U.S.C. § 1983 claims.
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38. The First Amendment of the United States Constitution ptotects the right to

free speech:

Congress shall make no law respecting an establishment of religion, ot

prohibiting the free exercise thereof; or abridging the freedom of speech, ot the

press, or the right of the people peaceably to assemble, and to petition the

Government for the redress of grievances.

39.  The First Amendment protects an individual’s right to engage in cote political
speech activities.

40.  Core political speech is the interchange of ideas for the btinging about of
political and social changes desired by the people.

41.  The First Amendment also protects an individual’s right to petition the
government for the redress of grievances.

42.  An individual has the right to exercise his First Amendment freedoms without
facing retaliation from government officials.

43.  The Fourteenth Amendment of the U.S. Constitution protects the due process
rights of citizens.

44.  Lincoln County Resolution 2002-27, as enacted, seeks to have constructed a
county jail, approve a lease payment agreement, and approve a bond levy of up to $50 million.

45.  The Lincoln County Board of Commissioners, ptior to Februaty 18, 2020, did
not provide its County taxpayers notice of Resolution 2002-27.

46.  Tuntland, as a taxpayer, has an interest in Boatd resolutions that directly affect

him, namely payment of County debt through taxes.
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47.  Tuntland, as a taxpayer, has an intetest in Board resolutions in so much that
when it concerns capital improvements such as a county jail, he may voice his opinion on the
project such as to the cost, the method of payment, or whether the project is necessaty at all,
prior to any formal action by the Board.

48.  Tuntland is an opponent of the proposed county jail as referenced in Resolution
2002-27 enacted by the Board on February 18, 2020.

49.  Tuntland is an opponent of the methodology of financing the county jail project
as referenced in Resolution 2002-27 enacted by the Boatd on Febtuary 18, 2020, such as
through a lease-payment agreement, and through bond levies.

50.  The Lincoln County Board of Commissioners, ptiot to February 18, 2020, did
not provide its County taxpayers any hearing regarding Resolution 2002-27.

51. Tuntland did not have notice prior to February 18, 2020 of Resolution 2002-27.

52. The Board did not provide adequate notice of Resolution 2002-27 as reflected
in its full publication of the Resolution, until gffer the Board’s vote.

53. At the Board meeting of February 18, 2020, the Boatd did not give taxpayets
an opportunity to be heard on Resolution 2002-27.

54. Prior to the Board meeting of February 18, 2020, the Board did not give
taxpayers an opportunity to be heard on Resolution 2002-27.

55. At the Board meeting of February 18, 2020, the Board did not give Tuntland an
opportunity to be heard on Resolution 2002-27.

56.  Prior to the Board meeting of February 18, 2020, the Board did not give

Tuntland an opportunity to be heard on Resolution 2002-27.
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57.  Notably, affer the enactment of Resolution 2002-27, the Boatd held public
hearings on the county jail. Tuntland attended one of the heatings. However, he believed the
hearing worthless since the County Boatd had already rendered its judgment on the project
and decision regarding its funding methodology.

58.  Tuntland’s tight to due process undet the Fourteenth Amendment was violated
when the Board failed to provide notice, adequate notice, constructive notice, ot timely notice
of any hearing on Resolution 2002-27.

59.  Tuntland’s right to due process under the Fourteenth Amendment was violated
when the Board failed to provide any heating on Resolution 2002-27, ptiot to ot on February
18, 2020.

60.  Tuntland sought legal assistance through counsel to voice his opposition to the
actions of the Board that occurred on February 18, 2020 and to identify the illegalities of the
Boatd’s actions.

61. At the instruction of Tuntland to express his voice, through counsel, wrote two
letters to Lincoln County concerning the passage of the Resolution and the potential issuance
of the bonds. Tuntland hired attorney Vincent Fahnlandet, to write letters dated March 24,
2020 and April 3, 2020, concerning the lack of notice with respect to the issuance of the bonds
and passage of the resolution, and the failure of the Boatd to pass the tesolution with more
than 60 percent of the five member Boatd.

62.  While Tuntland made demands of the County Boatd to tescind Resolution
2002-27, he did not state he would sue the Board.

63.  Tuntland believes that other County taxpayets opposed Resolution 2002-27.
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64.  Although Tuntland believes other County taxpayets opposed Resolution 2002-
27, he was the only taxpayer that wrote to the Board not only his opposition but reasons for
his opposition.

65.  The Board’s direct response to the submitted Tuntland letters was to sue him
individually for declaratory relief.

66.  The Boatrd did not identify as a defendant any other County taxpayer who
opposed Resolution 2002-27.

67.  The Board specifically targeted Tuntland as a defendant in its legal action.

68.  Writing a letter or letters to a government entity in opposition to its actions is a
core political speech activity.

69.  Although Tuntland sought legal assistance in writing lettets to the government
to convey his opposition and the legal basis for his opposition, Tuntland, as a defendant to
the County’s legal action, must expend moneys for attorney fees and costs he neither
welcomed nor can afford. Nevertheless, as a defendant Tuntland must defend against the
claims asserted by the Board.

70.  As adirect result of having submitted his letters to Lincoln County, the Board
violated Tuntland’s First Amendment right of free speech.

71.  As adirect result of having submitted his lettets to Lincoln County, the Board
sued Tuntland in retaliation for exercising protected First Amendment rights.

72. As a direct result of having submitted his lettets to Lincoln County, the Board
sued Tuntland as prior restraint to Tuntland’s exercise of First Amendment right of free

speech.
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73. As a direct result of having submitted his letters to Lincoln County, the Board
sued Tuntland to chill his exercise of protected cote political speech activities under the First
Amendment.

74. As a direct result of having submitted his letters to Lincoln County, the Board
actions to sue Tuntland has chilled Tuntland from further cote political speech activities. For
mstance, Tuntland, fearful of further retaliation, must now consider whether or not to speak
to the press or make other public statements about Resolution 2002-27 or any other future
Board action in which he may oppose.

75. The actions of the Board—Lincoln County—tesulted in the violation of
Tuntland’s protected constitutional rights under the First and Fourteenth Amendments as a
violation of his civil rights under 42 U.S.C. § 1983.

76.  Because the First and Foutteenth Amendment rights of Tuntland under 42

U.S.C. § 1983 were and are violated, he is entitled to attorney fees, costs, and disbursements.

WHEREFORE, Mr. Tuntland respectfully requests that the Court dismiss the
Complaint on the merits, and with prejudice, that the Court issue an Order declaring that the
resolution adopted by the Lincoln County Board of Commissioners on February 18, 2020,
concerning the lease-purchase for a public safety building and potential issuance of bonds is
void, invalid, and without authotity, that the Court issue a Writ of Prohibition prohibiting
Lincoln County from acting upon the invalid resolution and prohibiting it from issuing any
bonds under the resolution, that Mr. Tuntland be awarded damages, and attorney’s fees and

such further relief as the Court may deem appropriate.
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SCHAFFER LAW OFFICE, PROF. LLC

: /5] Michael |. Schaffer
Dated this 22nd day of May, 2020.

Michael J. Schaffer

mikes(@schafferlawoffice.com
5132 S. Cliff Avenue, Suite 5

Sioux Falls, SD 57108
Telephone: (605) 274-6760
Facsimile: (605) 274-6764
Attorneys for Defendant

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL
Mt. Tuntland, the Defendant, demands a ttial by juty on all issues so ttiable.

/s/ Michael |. Schaffer

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
The undersigned, one of the attotneys for Defendant heteby cettifies that a true and
cotrect copy of the “Answer and Countetclaim” was setved by electronic filing with the
Cletk of the Court by using the Odyssey File & Setrve system, which sent notification of such
filing upon:

Thomas Wollman
twollman(@lincolncountysd.org
William H. Golden
wgolden@lincolncountysd.org
Office of the Lincoln County State’s Attotney
104 N. Main Street, Suite 200
Canton SD 57013

Attorneys for Plaintsff
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this 227d day of May, 2020.

/5] Michael |. Schaffer
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